
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

Thursday, 28 October 2021 

 

Tel: 01993 861522 

e-mail - democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

LOWLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in the Council Chamber, Woodgreen, Witney OX28 1NB on Monday, 8 November 2021 at 2.00 

pm. 
 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 

To: Members of the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Councillor Ted Fenton (Chairman), Councillor Joy Aitman (Vice-Chair), Councillor 

 Rosa Bolger, Councillor Maxine Crossland, Councillor Harry Eaglestone, Councillor Duncan  

Enright, Councillor Steve Good, Councillor Jeff Haine, Councillor Richard Langridge, Councillor  

Nick Leverton, Councillor Dan Levy, Councillor Lysette Nicholls, Councillor Carl Rylett,  

Councillor Harry St John and Councillor Ben Woodruff 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 10) 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2021. 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting. 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 11 - 50) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

Recommendation: 

That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Business Manager – Development Management. 

 

Application Number Address      Page  

20/02720/FUL   Building 2 And 3, Windrush Park Road,   13 

Witney       

 

21/02248/FUL   Gateway House, Windrush Park Road,   21 

Witney 

 

21/02896/FUL   The Newlands Inn, 45 - 47 Newland Street,   31 

Eynsham 

 

21/02929/FUL   Land At Windrush Park, Windrush Park Road,  39 

Witney 

 

5.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers (Pages 51 - 64) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers and 

any appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 2



WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber at 2.00 pm on Monday, 11 October 2021 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Councillor Ted Fenton (Chairman), Councillor Joy Aitman (Vice-Chair), 

Councillor Maxine Crossland, Councillor Harry Eaglestone, Councillor Duncan Enright, 

Councillor Jeff Haine, Councillor Nick Leverton, Councillor Dan Levy, Councillor Michele 

Mead, Councillor Lysette Nicholls, Councillor Carl Rylett and Councillor Ben Woodruff 

Officers:  Miranda Clark (Senior Planner (Development Management)), Joan Desmond 

(Principal Planner), Esther Hill (Planner) and Kelly Murray (Senior Planning Officer) Amy 

Bridgewater-Carnall (Senior Democratic Services Officer) and Adrienne Frazer (Strategic 

Support Officer) 

26 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2021 were approved and signed by the 

Chairman as a correct record. 

27 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bolger, Good and Langridge. 

Councillor Mead substituted for Councillor St John. 

28 Declarations of Interest  

Declarations of Interest were received as follows: 

Councillor Leverton declared an interest in application 21/01197/FUL Tactical Medical Wing 

RAF Brize Norton as he was the Armed Forces Champion for Oxfordshire and West 

Oxfordshire. 

Councillors Aitman and Enright declared interests in 21/02718/HHD and 21/02718/LBC 35 - 
37 Woodgreen Witney as they were both friends of the applicant and left the room during the 

consideration of these applications.  Councillor Enright also declared an interest as he was the 

County Councillor for Witney North and East. 

Councillor Levy declared an interest in a number of the applications as he was the County 

Councillor for Standlake and Aston. 

Councillor Woodruff declared an interest in application 21/02099/FUL Land South Of 

Ferndale, Aston. 

29 Applications for Development  

The Sub-Committee received the report of the Business Manager – Development 

Management, giving details of the applications for development, copies of which had been 

circulated.  

RESOLVED: That the decisions on the following applications be as indicated, the reasons for 

refusal to be as recommended in the report of the Business Manager – Development 

Management, subject to any amendments as detailed below:- 

 

21/01197/FUL  Tactical Medical Wing RAF Brize Norton 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/October2021 

The Senior Planner (Development Management), Miranda Clark, introduced the application for 

the installation of a new Primary Surveillance Radar on a new radar tower together with 

associated works and a new ground-based equipment cabin.  She informed the meeting that an 

additional ten letters of objection had been received and noted that the Parish Council had 

sent information to members of the Committee. 

Public submissions were received from Mr Artus in objection to the application; Mr P Squire 

representing Brize Norton Parish Council in objection to the application and Councillor A 

Postan, the local Ward Member, in objection to the application.  Public submissions were also 

received from Mr C Flanagan representing Black Box Planning in support of the application. 

Mr Artus advised the meeting that a local farmer had been asked for access to his land in 

order to be able to lop the trees. This was despite people having been informed that the trees 

would remain in order to shield the view of the tower. 

Mr Squire proposed an alternative site, not currently owned by the Ministry of Defence 

(MoD). 

Councillor Postan advised the committee that the majority of residents objected to the 

application.  He provided a comparison of the costs of land compared to military flights. He 

noted that the site is directly adjacent to the important Brize Norton Country Park which 

forms a green arc around north east and west boundaries of Carterton and that the rotating 

aerial would create a constant and inappropriate nuisance from the noise and light flicker while 

in operation.  He then listed sections of the Local Plan that he felt the application did not 

meet.  They are as follows: 

3.3:54.    

Core objective 3.3.5    

“protecting and enhancing our environment” 

CO11  

“Maximise the opportunity for walking cycling and use of public transport” 

CO14.   

“Concern and enhance the high environmental quality of West Oxfordshire  

Protection and promotion of its diverse landscape biodiversity geological conservation and its 

local cultural heritage and environmental aspects.” 

Mr Flanagan explained that RAF Brize Norton was the principal MoD airbase in the UK and 

that any third party land acquisitions would fail the compulsory purchase tests. 

Councillor Crossland asked Mr Flanagan to elaborate further on the issue around compulsory 

purchase.  Mr Flanagan explained that the tests to allow compulsory purchase would fail 

because the MoD already owned land which provided a suitable site for the new Primary 

Surveillance Radar. 

Following a question from Councillor Fenton, Mr Flanagan said that the owner of the land for 

an alternative site had not been approached as they would be unlikely to sell the land at 

agricultural land prices.  Councillor Rylett asked how the other proposed site did not meet 

MoD’s requirements?  Mr Flanagan said that the officer’s report -section 3 explained this 

thoroughly. 

The Senior Planner (Development Management) then presented her report containing a 

recommendation of approval.  She advised that this application requires planning permission 

because of the height of the mast. She noted that the agent confirmed that trees will not be 

lopped and that the Ecology Officer was happy with the application but had suggested 

additional conditions to ensure that the bats, birds, badgers, hedgehogs, reptiles and 

amphibians were protected. 

Page 4



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/October2021 

Councillor Woodruff sympathised with local residents but felt that the MoD needed the most 

up to date infrastructure and proposed that the application be granted as per officer’s 

recommendation. 

This was seconded by Councillor Haine who stated that the other possible sites were not on 

MoD land and the visual impact will be got used to over time.  He commented that the 

officer’s report in the application was good and detailed. 

Councillor Crossland disagreed and said that no substantial effort had been made to purchase 

other land and it is not possible to put a price on the safety or health of the public. 

The Chairman noted that the Committee could not judge an application on the possibility of 

other sites but only on this application’s details.  Councillor Enright supported the Chair and 

said that the Committee had to consider the application on its planning merits. 

Councillor Haine added that towers such as this need 24 hour protection which would not be 

possible without the mast being sited on MoD land. 

Councillor Rylett asked about how this application compared with the application for a mast in 

Eynsham earlier this year.  Councillor Fenton advised that that application in Eynsham was to 

consider a communications mast rather than an MoD mast and the legislation was different. 

The officer’s recommendation of approval was then put to the vote and was carried.  

 

Approved 

 

21/01497/FUL  The Bell Inn 21 High Street 

The Senior Planner (Development Management), Miranda Clark, introduced the application for 

the conversion of former pub into 4 bedroom dwelling and erection of two new 5 bedroom 

dwellings and carport to the rear with associated landscaping and parking areas. 

A public submission was received from Mr H Mellor representing the applicant in which he 
stated that planning policy allows development in the case of an application that includes the 

loss of a public house where it is not the last such facility in a village.  

Following a question from Councillor Levy asking in what way the applicant had attempted to 

restore the site to its use as a pub / restaurant, Mr Mellor informed the Committee that the 

pub closed in 2015 following a fire and the necessary proceeds had not been received from 

the insurance for the applicant to be in a position to restore the site to its former use. 

The Senior Planner (Development Management) then presented her report containing a 

recommendation of approval.  She advised that the planned orchard will restrict further 

development of the site at the rear.  The officer confirmed that the properties were to be 

built to sustainable standards and that the parking provided met Oxfordshire County Council 

parking standards. 

Councillor Enright suggested that the volume of cars was likely to reduce over time and 

proposed that the application be granted as per officers’ recommendation.   This was 

seconded by Councillor Haine who stated that the two houses to the rear were easily 

accommodated on the site. 

Councillor Levy informed the Committee that he would not be supporting the application 

because: there was no evidence that an attempt had been made to provide a pub on the site; 

or to assess the market for a viable pub on the site; the pub that was formerly on the site was 

viable and so the Local Plan policy E5 was not met; and that the site being in the midst of a 

Page 5



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/October2021 

green space and now being built upon would result in further development in this green area 

in the village. 

Councillors Crossland and Woodruff were happy to support the application since the site had 

been empty since 2015. 

Councillor Nicholls supported Councillor Levy and was also concerned about the lack of input 

from Thames Water. 

Councillor Fenton suggested a site visit but the Committee felt this to be unnecessary. 

Having heard the above discussion Councillor Enright withdrew his proposal. 

Councillor Haine proposed the officers’ recommendation of approval and Councillor 

Woodruff seconded the proposal. 

The officers’ recommendation of approval was then put to the vote and was carried.  

 

Approved 

 

21/01812/FUL  The Stone Barn High Street 

The Senior Planner (Development Management), Miranda Clark, introduced the application for 

conversion of three linked agricultural buildings into one five bedroomed dwelling. 

A public submission was received from Mr Gower the applicant.  

Following a question from Councillor Leverton, Mr Gower agreed that the access to Abingdon 

Road would be maintained and that this would be written into the contract.  He advised the 

Committee that, if he remembered rightly, the responsibility for the access to Abingdon Road 

was held by Manor Farm House. 

Councillor Nicholls asked about the sewerage connection.  Mr Gower advised that the 

development will be connected into mains sewerage. 

The Senior Planner (Development Management) then presented her report containing a 
recommendation of approval.  She advised that the Planning Department were still awaiting 

the ecology reports and asked for delegated authority from the Committee to proceed with 

their recommendation once the reports were received. 

Councillor Enright agreed with the officer’s recommendation that the application be approved 

subject to the conditions detailed in the ecology report and proposed that permission be 

granted.  This was seconded by Councillor Leverton and the vote was carried. 

 

Approved 

 

21/01992/FUL  6 The Paddocks Weald Street 

The Senior Planning Officer, Kelly Murray, introduced the application for the erection of an 

ancillary dayroom and presented her report containing a recommendation of approval.   

Councillor Fenton noted that this site is in his Ward.  As Chairman he advised the Committee 

that the application could only be considered as it was and that the Parish Council’s objection 

about this being a unit of self-contained accommodation could not be considered because no 

self-contained accommodation was proposed in the application.  

Page 6



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/October2021 

Councillor Leverton asked whether since a proper structure was being built would this set a 

precedent for future development.  The Senior Planning Officer responded advising that no 

precedent would be set, the proposal is not to remove a caravan and replace it with a home. 

Councillor Enright stated that as there was no visual intrusion and the application was for the 

same construction as others on the site, he proposed that the application be granted as per 

officers’ recommendations. This was seconded by Councillor Woodruff. 

The officers’ recommendation of approval was then put to the vote and was carried.  

 

Approved 

 

Councillor Woodruff left the meeting. 

 

21/02099/FUL  Land South Of Ferndale Back Lane 

The Planner, Esther Hill, introduced the application for the erection of a detached dwelling, 

carport/garage and workshop with home office above and associated works. 

A public submission was received by Mrs L Wain, the applicant. 

The Planner then presented her report containing a recommendation of refusal.  Following a 

question from Councillor Crossland, she advised that the site contributes to the openness of 

Aston Conservation Area and this is why the application is not a logical compliment to the 

building north of it.  She confirmed that the Conservation Area takes precedent. 

Councillor Haine agreed with the officers’ recommendation that the application be refused.  

He appreciated what the applicant was trying to do but felt this was not the right site.  He 

noted that the Committee had already refused a similar application 75 metres away and had 

won an appeal on that decision.  He felt there was no option but to refuse the application. 

This was seconded by Councillor Leverton who stated that the site visit had been helpful and 
thanked the Planner.  He had seen on the site visit that the 200 year old field and site of the 

church needed protecting and the application was an intrusion into a valuable open space. 

The officers’ recommendation of refusal was then put to the vote and was carried.  

 

Refused 

 

21/02210/FUL  Unit 1-5 Avenue Two 

The Senior Planner (Development Management), Miranda Clark, introduced the application for 

the demolition of existing Unit 4 and change of use from general industrial use (Class B2) to 

builders merchant (sui generis) for the display, sale and storage of building, timber and 

plumbing supplies, storage and distribution of kitchen joinery products, plant and tool hire, 

including outside display and storage including storage racking; formation of external materials 

storage and loading area, access and servicing arrangements, car parking, landscaping and 

associated works. 

A public submission was received by Councillor Andrew Prosser on behalf of Witney Town 

Council in objection to the application informing the Committee that the site is on an Active 

Travel route which is also a route to Ducklington and requested that the east / west section of 

Page 7



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/October2021 

Avenue Two is used for access by HGV traffic thus reducing the risk to cyclists and 

pedestrians using the north / south section of the road. 

Councillor Levy advised the Committee that he is cycle champion for the District.  He noted 

that he and Councillor Prosser had been in discussion with the Town Council and County 

Council Highways Department. 

Councillor Leverton asked about the number of road traffic incidents during the time the site 

was last in use.  Councillor Prosser advised that the issue is the change of entrance to the 

north / south section of Avenue Two in this application so the data on past incidents would 

not provide information relevant to this application as access was via the east / west section at 

that time. 

A public submission was also received by Mr Alsop on behalf of the applicant.  He informed 

the Committee that the problem with the site is the limited size of the yard in respect to the 

size of the built area; that planning permission was already granted for an entrance on the 

north / south section of Avenue Two and had suggested to the Highways Department that the 

concerns about cyclists safety could be addressed with parking restrictions on the relevant 

section of Avenue Two. 

Following a question from Councillor Enright about managing the traffic, Mr Alsop advised that 

an application for a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) was progressing which might provide 

double yellow lines to the section of Avenue Two in order to improve visibility and safety. 

The Senior Planner (Development Management) then presented her report containing a 

recommendation of approval.   

Councillor Levy commented that cyclist safety had been ignored and proposed a site visit.  

This was seconded by Councillor Rylett.   

Councillor Enright informed the meeting that he had talked to the Highways team at 

Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) about this site.  He explained that everything indicated 
that this was an industrial site, even though it was also used as an access route to Ducklington 

lake.  He acknowledged that the only reason that this has not been a problem recently was 

because the site had been vacant.  Councillor Enright advised that there is no planning basis on 

which to restrict the HGV access to the site as only possible from the north; that it is not in 

Highways power to stop HGV access from the east / west.  He suggested that it perhaps it 

would be possible to encourage the new owner to mitigate the safety issues via their public 

liaison and community engagement work. 

Councillor Fenton reminded Members that Highways issues were not in the Committee’s 

remit.  He indicated that a site visit needed to provide an opportunity to look at an issue that 

it was the Committee’s remit to consider. 

Councillor Mead noted that there were two other access routes to Ducklington lake. 

Councillor Haine stated that the Council should support businesses to grow.  He felt that 

since the Committee did not have a remit over Highways decisions, a site visit was not 

relevant.   

Having been put to the vote the proposal to hold a site visit was lost. 

Councillor Haine proposed that the application be granted as per officers’ recommendation.  

This was seconded by Councillor Leverton.  The officers’ recommendation of approval was 

then put to the vote and was carried.  

 

Approved 

Page 8



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/October2021 

 

21/02321/HHD and 21/02322/LBC The Deanery Church Close 

The Senior Planning Officer, Kelly Murray, introduced the retrospective application, for the 

replacement of existing vehicular and pedestrian entrance gates to The Deanery. 

A public submission was received by Mrs Armitage, the applicant, who stated that the gates 

were in disrepair when they moved into the property. 

The Senior Planning Officer then presented her report containing a recommendation of 

approval. 

Councillor Enright agreed with the officers’ recommendation that the application be approved 

and proposed that permission be granted.  He noted that there was no single style of gate in 

Bampton and that the new gates would weather in. This was seconded by Councillor Levy 

who commented that the gates looked elegant during the site visit. 

The officers’ recommendations of approval for both applications were both put to the vote 

and both were carried.  

 

Approved 

 

21/02718/HHD and 21/02719/LBC  35 - 37 Woodgreen Witney 

The Principal Planner, Joan Desmond, introduced the application for a single storey rear 

extension. 

Public submissions were received from Councillor Prosser, the Ward Councillor, and Katy 

Lysley, the applicant.  Councillor Prosser stated his support for the application as he 

considered that the development did not affect the visual appearance of the property from the 

road.  Ms Lysley then stated that it was clear that the extension was secondary to the original 

building; that the Grade II listing was in relation to the front of the property; that the 
neighbours supported the application and that the application would not alter the original 

property.   

The Principal Planner then presented her report containing a recommendation of refusal. 

Councillor Haine felt that the extension was not subservient to the existing building and noted 

that the Committee had already, previously agreed an application for an extension of a suitable 

size for the property.  He felt that the application should be refused for these reasons as per 

officers’ recommendation. 

Councillor Mead seconded the proposal. 

Councillor Rylett agreed with the public submissions that the Grade II listing was in relation to 

the front of the property and was not convinced that this extension was doing damage to the 

property.  He would not support the refusal of the application. 

Councillor Levy felt undecided as he felt the application would not substantially change a listed 

building and the change would not be visible from the road. 

The Principal Planner clarified the planning term “less substantial harm”.  She clarified the legal 

duty to protect the historic character and appearance of listed buildings and noted that any 

minor public benefit was met by the first application, which was already approved, and this 

second proposal would not add to this. 

Page 9



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/October2021 

The officers’ recommendations of refusal of both applications were then put to the vote and 

both were carried.  

 

Refused  

30 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions  

The report giving details of applications determined under delegated powers was received and 

noted.  

The Principal Planner outlined the Appeal Decisions report.  It was noted that both appeals 

had been dismissed. 

 

The Meeting closed at 4.43 pm 

 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 10



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

LOWLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 8th November 2021 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Strategic Director. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc. and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


 
Page Number Application Number Address Officer 

13 

 

20/02720/FUL Building 2 And 3 Windrush Park 

Road, Witney 

 

Miranda Clark 

 

21 

 

21/02248/FUL Gateway House Windrush Park 

Road, Witney 

 

Miranda Clark 

 

31 

 

21/02896/FUL The Newlands Inn 45 - 47 

Newland Street, Eynsham 

 

Miranda Clark 

 

39 

 

21/02929/FUL Land At Windrush Park 

Windrush Park Road, Witney 

 

Miranda Clark 

 

Page 12



 

Application Number 20/02720/FUL 

Site Address 
Building 2 and 3 

Windrush Park Road 

Windrush Industrial Park 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 7EZ 

 

Date 27th October 2021 

Officer Miranda Clark 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Witney Parish Council 

Grid Reference 433308 E       210469 N 

Committee Date 8th November 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Page 13



Demolition of existing redundant asbestos clad industrial building (building 2 and part of building 3F) to 

provide new car parking for 135 cars together with associated works. 

 

Applicant Details: 

M Nicholas Howe 

Welland Property Unit Trust 

C/o Canmoor 

34 Dover Street 

London 

W1S 4NG 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

Revised plans: 

Objection 

Detailed comments: 

LLFA appreciates the new information submitted. However, the site 

needs a standalone drainage strategy report submitted in accordance 

with the latest, local and national guidance. 

The calculations provided must adhere to our guidance for full 

applications. 

As there are new car parking spaces proposed and the site falls within 

Groundwater Vulnerability Zone, the applicant must provide water 

quality assessment in accordance with Section 4 and Section 26 of 

SuDS Manual. 

In addition, proposed development must meet local standards, L19, 

"At least one surface feature should be deployed within the drainage 

system for water quality purposes, or more features for runoff which 

may contain higher levels of pollutants in accordance with the CIRIA 

SuDS Manual C753. Only if surface features are demonstrated as not 

viable, then approved proprietary engineered pollution control 

features such as vortex separators, serviceable/ replaceable filter 

screens, or pollution interceptors may be used" 

A detailed surface water management strategy must be submitted in 

accordance with the Local Standards and Guidance for Surface Water 

Drainage on Major Development in Oxfordshire. 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

 No Comment Received. 

 

 

Biodiversity Officer  No objections – conditions 

 

Parish Council Witney Town Council object to this application. The LLFA requires a 

comprehensive drainage strategy, the appended document does not 

meet what is being asked for by Oxfordshire County Council. Witney 

Town Council echo comments from the OCC response and would 

like to see a drainage feature incorporated in the proposed 

development. 

 

The transport statement is inconsistent and hasn't been modelled on 

Page 14



a car parking requirement for the wider site use, the statement 

doesn't make a case for the requirement of 135 parking spaces. 

 

Members would like to see an Asbestos Management Strategy for the 

works to ensure that all safety and contamination risks are properly 

managed. 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

Objection 

Detailed comments: 

The proposed development needs a standalone drainage strategy 

submitted in accordance with the latest, local and national guidance. 

As there are new car parking spaces proposed and the site falls within 

Groundwater Vulnerability Zone, the applicant must provide water 

quality assessment in accordance with Section 4 and Section 26 of 

SuDS Manual. 

In addition, proposed development must meet local standards, L19, 

"At least one surface feature should be deployed within the drainage 

system for water quality purposes, or more features for runoff which 

may contain higher levels of pollutants in accordance with the CIRIA 

SuDS Manual C753. Only if surface features are demonstrated as not 

viable, then approved proprietary engineered pollution control 

features such as vortex separators, serviceable/ replaceable filter 

screens, or pollution interceptors may be used" 

 

Conservation Officer  No Comment Received. 

 

Natural England  No comments to make 

 

WODC Env Health - Lowlands  I have No Objection in principle. 

 

WODC Business Development It would be helpful to know how this proposed development fits with 

the overall masterplan for the site.  The application doesn't seem to 

include a design and access statement or similar so it is hard to know 

what the context is for the application. 

 

Biodiversity Officer More information requested 

 

TV Police-Crime Prevention 

Design Advisor 

No Comment Received. 

 

 

Newt Officer No comments to make 

 

Adjacent Parish Council Curbridge PC - No comments 

 

Parish Council Witney Town Council objects to this application as the applicants 

need to provide drainage strategy with proper SUDS consideration 

and more information on what the parking is for. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

Page 15



 

2.1 No comments received 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 No supporting documents were submitted with the application. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

E1NEW Land for employment 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH8 Environmental protection 

EH7 Flood risk 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The application site is located within a mature industrial park located off Burford Road in Witney. 

 

5.2 The proposal seeks planning permission for the demolition and part demolition of buildings to 

provide new car parking.  This is part of a new master plan for the whole park. 

 

5.3 The application is to be heard before the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee as the Town 

Council have raised objections. 

 

5.4 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

 

5.5 The application seeks planning permission to demolish two existing buildings and to replace them 

with hardstanding in order to create a new car park for the adjoining warehouse units and a new access 

point to the site. 

 

5.6 Policy E1 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan discusses land for employment.  It states for 

existing employment sites proposals to improve the effectiveness of employment operations on existing 

employment sites will be supported where commensurate with the scale of the town or village and the 

character of the area. This may include redevelopment, replacement buildings or the expansion of 

existing employment uses. 

 

5.7 The proposal is required to improve the overall industrial park.  As such your officers consider that 

the principle of such development is acceptable in this location. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

Page 16



5.8 The existing buildings are both large disused warehouses with a number of smaller rooms.  The first 

building is of a single storey form constructed of brick, with the second building being smaller but of 

similar construction.  Your officers consider that the removal of these buildings will not detract from 

the visual appearance of the overall site as they do not contribute to the general visual appearance of 

the area outside of the application site. 

 

Highways 

 

5.9 Your officers have received an objection from OCC in terms of drainage which is also of concern 

from the Town Council.  At the time of writing your officers are anticipating a response from OCC 

after further supporting information has been received from the applicant. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.10 The proposed works will not adversely affect residential amenities given the location of the site 

which is set away from residential dwellings.  Your Environmental Health officer has not raised 

objections.  In terms of asbestos this would be dealt with under Building Regulations/Environmental 

Health legislation. 

 

Ecology 

 

5.11 After expressing initial concerns regarding biodiversity further information was sought from the 

applicant. Your ecology officer has now no objections subject to conditions. 

 

Drainage 

 

5.12 OCC as the Lead Local Flood Authority have raised concerns regarding the lack of a stand-alone 

drainage strategy. Further information has been submitted but it did not resolve the concerns so officers 

have gone back to the applicant for more detail. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.13 Whilst there is still an outstanding issue regarding the drainage associated with the proposed use, 

your officers consider that the principle of such a development is acceptable and complies with the 

relevant policies stated within the report.  It is anticipated that officers will provide a full verbal update 

at the meeting. 

 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 1  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

 2  That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

Page 17



 3  The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance of doubt 

as to what is permitted.  

 

 4  The development shall be completed in accordance with the recommendations in Sections 3 & 4 of 

the Ecological Impact Assessment, dated 21st May 2021 prepared by Clarkson & Woods Ecological 

Consultants, as submitted with the planning application. All the recommendations shall be implemented 

in full according to the specified timescales, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 

authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure that bats and birds are protected in accordance with The Conservation of Habitats 

and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as amended, 

Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework (Chapter 15), 

Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 

of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 5  Before the site first comes into use, details of the provision of bat roosting features (e.g. bat 

boxes/tubes/bricks on south or southeast-facing elevations) and nesting opportunities for birds (e.g. 

house sparrow terrace, starling box, swift brick or house martin nest cup on the north or east-facing 

elevations) either mounted onto the external walls of the buildings or onto mature trees on site, as well 

as hedgehog gaps/holes within any new fences/walls, shall be submitted to the local planning authority 

for approval. The details shall include a drawing/s showing the types of features, their locations within 

the site and their positions on the elevations of the buildings, and a timetable for their provision. The 

approved details shall be implemented before the buildings hereby approved is/are first occupied and 

thereafter permanently retained. 

 

REASON: To provide additional roosting for bats and nesting birds as a biodiversity enhancement in 

accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 of 

the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural 

Communities Act 2006. 

 

 6  Before the site first comes into use, details of external lighting shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the local planning authority. The details shall show how and where external lighting will be 

installed (including the type of lighting), so that light spillage into wildlife corridors will be minimised as 

much as possible.  

 

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications and locations set out in the 

approved details, and these shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with these details. Under no 

circumstances should any other external lighting be installed without prior consent from the local 

planning authority. 

                                                                                                       

REASON: To protect foraging/commuting bats in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), Circular 

06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 of the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural 

Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 7  Prior to the proposed car park being open for use a minimum of 20% of spaces shall be provided 

with the facility to charge electric or hybrid vehicles.  These spaces shall be retained hereafter. 

Page 18



 

Reason: To encourage the use of ultra-low emission vehicles in accordance with paragraph 110 of the 

NPPF. 

 

INFORMATIVES :- 

 

 0. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to species 

protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant legislation 

such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

All British bat species are protected under The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

(as amended), which implements the EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United Kingdom, and the Wildlife 

and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). This protection extends to individuals of the species and their 

roost features, whether occupied or not. A derogation licence from Natural England would be required 

before any works affecting bats or their roosts are carried out.  

 

All British birds (while nesting, building nests, sitting on eggs and feeding chicks), their nests and eggs 

(with certain limited exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside 

Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. Works that will impact upon 

active birds' nests should be undertaken outside the breeding season to ensure their protection, i.e. 

works should only be undertaken between August and February, or only after the chicks have fledged 

from the nest.  

 

In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected species, or if evidence of protected 

species is found during works, then you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced 

ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to commencing works (with 

regard to bats).  

 

Notes to applicant 

 

 1 Please note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to species 

protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant 

legislation such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

All British bat species are protected under The Conservation of Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2017 (as amended), which implements the EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United 

Kingdom, and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). This protection extends to 

individuals of the species and their roost features, whether occupied or not. A derogation 

licence from Natural England would be required before any works affecting bats or their roosts 

are carried out.  

 

All British birds (while nesting, building nests, sitting on eggs and feeding chicks), their nests and 

eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. Works 

that will impact upon active birds' nests should be undertaken outside the breeding season to 

ensure their protection, i.e. works should only be undertaken between August and February, or 

only after the chicks have fledged from the nest.  

 

Page 19



In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected species, or if evidence of protected  

species is found during works, then you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced  

ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to commencing works (with  

regard to bats).  

 

 

Contact Officer: Miranda Clark 

Telephone Number: 01993 861660 

Date: 27th October 2021 

Page 20



 
Application Number 21/02248/FUL 

Site Address 
Gateway House 

Windrush Park Road 

Windrush Industrial Park 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 7EY 

 

Date 27th October 2021 

Officer Miranda Clark 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Witney Parish Council 

Grid Reference 433443 E       210435 N 

Committee Date 8th November 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Erection of nine industrial units, to include external ancillary service areas, car and cycle parking. 

Page 21



 

Applicant Details: 

Mr Nicholas Howe 

C/O Canmoor 

34 Dover Street 

London 

W1S 4NG 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council Witney Town Council object to this application: 

 

1) The plans do not illustrate safe on-site access for pedestrians or to 

the cycle facilities. West Oxfordshire Local Plan encourages active 

travel to work through Policy OS2, T1 and T3, Members note that 

the proposed plan fails to make adequate provision of measures to 

encourage non-car modes of transport. 

 

2) Members note the concerns of Thames Water and request an 

appropriate sustainable surface water strategy before approval is 

considered and that this approach be in line with the requirements as 

outlined in the relevant Planning and flood risk paragraphs of the 

NPPF. Further, that the identified 'inability of the existing water 

network to accommodate the needs of this development proposal' be 

fully assessed and considered. 

 

3) Members note that the ground assessments have shown evidence 

of asbestos and other harmful contaminants present at the site. 

Witney Town Council request that to comply with Policy EH8, the 

report findings be given due consideration by Officers and an 

Asbestos Management Plan be submitted and approved ahead of 

works commencing. 

 

4) The proposal locates buildings too close to the site boundary and 

misses an opportunity for soft landscaping buffers to be introduced. 

 

5) The proposal does not include satisfactory provision towards 

meeting the needs of the declared climate emergency. Measures could 

include solar panels and electric vehicle charging points. Members 

welcome a revised proposal that more closely meets the 

environmental objectives as set out in the WODC Local Plan overall 

strategy and in particular, to comply with Policy OS3. 

 

Witney Town Council does agree in principle to the redevelopment 

of this site and would rather welcome an application with a revised 

proposal that addresses the concerns outlined above. 

 

Thames Water Thames Water would advise that with regard to WASTE WATER 

NETWORK and SEWAGE TREATMENT WORKS infrastructure 

capacity, we would not have any objection to the above planning 

Page 22



application, based on the information provided. 

 

Thames Water recognises this catchment is subject to high infiltration 

flows during certain groundwater conditions. The scale of the 

proposed development doesn't materially affect the sewer network 

and as such we have no objection, however care needs to be taken 

when designing new networks to ensure they don't surcharge and 

cause flooding. In the longer term Thames Water, along with other 

partners, are working on a strategy to reduce groundwater entering 

the sewer networks.  

 

Thames Water recognises this catchment is subject to high infiltration 

flows during certain groundwater conditions. The developer should 

liaise with the LLFA to agree an appropriate sustainable surface water 

strategy following the sequential approach before considering 

connection to the public sewer network. The scale of the proposed 

development doesn't materially affect the sewer network and as such 

we have no objection, however care needs to be taken when 

designing new networks to ensure they don't surcharge and cause 

flooding. In the longer term Thames Water, along with other 

partners, are working on a strategy to reduce groundwater entering 

the sewer network. 

 

With regard to surface water drainage, Thames Water would advise 

that if the developer follows the sequential approach to the disposal 

of surface water we would have no objection.  

 

Following initial investigations, Thames Water has identified an 

inability of the existing water network infrastructure to accommodate 

the needs of this development proposal. Thames Water have 

contacted the developer in an attempt to agree a position on water 

networks but have been unable to do so in the time available and as 

such Thames Water request that the following condition be added to 

any planning permission. No development shall be occupied until 

confirmation has been provided that either:- all water network 

upgrades required to accommodate the additional flows to serve the 

development have been completed; or - a development and 

infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with Thames Water to 

allow development to be occupied. Where a development and 

infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation shall take place 

other than in accordance with the agreed development and 

infrastructure phasing plan. Reason - The development may lead to no 

/ low water pressure and network reinforcement works are 

anticipated to be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity is made 

available to accommodate additional demand anticipated from the 

new development" The developer can request information to support 

the discharge of this condition by visiting the Thames Water website 

at thameswater.co.uk/preplanning. 

 

Major Planning Applications Objection for the following reasons: 

Page 23



Team The proposed layout fails to ensure that safe and suitable access to 

the site can be achieved for all users - contrary to 108 (b) NPPF 

The proposed plans fail to make adequate provision of measures that 

encourage sustainable travel - contrary to 108 (a) NPPF 

 

Parking provision has been based on B8 standards across all units 

rather than on the floor area of each unit with respect to the 

allocation 

 

If despite OCC's objection permission is proposed to be granted then 

OCC requires prior to the issuing of planning permission a s106 

agreement including an obligation to enter into a s278 agreement to 

mitigate the impact of the development. 

 

Public transport infrastructure £25,000 Q3 2021 Baxter New shelters 

at the two existing bus stops on Burford Road, including a set of 

premium route pole, flag and timetable cases. 

 

Travel Plan Monitoring £1,446 Q3 2021 RPI-x Travel plan monitoring 

for a period of 5 years. 

 

Local Lead Authority - No objections subject to conditions 

 

WODC Env Health - Lowlands I have no objection 

 

Biodiversity Officer Further information required 

 

TV Police-Crime Prevention 

Design Advisor 

Whilst I do not wish to object to the current proposals, I make the 

following comments; 

 

Car parking 

I have significant concerns that the car park to the north-east of the 

development lacks surveillance, leaving vehicles and their occupants 

vulnerable to crime and antisocial behavior. Unless robustly secured, 

this car park is also vulnerable to illegal encampments. From plans 

submitted I am unable to locate a boundary treatment or lighting plan, 

so am unable to identify any security measures proposed in this area. 

Given the lack of natural surveillance over this car park, I ask that it is 

robustly secured with durable and visually permeable fencing, and 

gating which can be effectively secured out of hours. The car park 

must also be sufficiently lit to the standards of BS5489-2020 during 

hours of use, and covered by formal CCTV. CCTV should be 

integrated into the lighting design to prevent interference. 

 

Fire exit doors/Recessed entrances 

The proposed fire exits for units 5 and 7 (and possibly 8/9) are 

located in a vulnerable position with no natural surveillance, with 

walkways creating a hiding place for offenders. Similarly the goods 

entrances for units 4-7 are recessed, reducing surveillance over them 

from the main road. I ask that the fire escape routes are secured with 

Page 24



a minimum 1.8m high visually permeable fence and gate which can 

only be opened from the inside. 

 

No details regarding formal surveillance within the site (CCTV) has 

been mentioned.  It is recommended that where surveillance of 

concealed, secluded areas, such as the goods entrance doors, fire exit 

doors and main car park cannot be achieved, CCTV (formal 

surveillance) should be considered. CCTV can have a positive impact 

on crime, especially when implemented as part of a wider package. 

However, CCTV should not be considered as an alternative to good 

design. CCTV is most effective when combined with good lighting and 

designed to counter a set of offences, and supported by management, 

continuous monitoring and adequate response. 

 

ERS Env. Consultation Sites  Please add condition 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

 No Comment Received. 

 

 

 2 2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No comments have been received. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A Design and Access Statement has been submitted as part of the application.  It has been 

summarised as; 

 

The proposal is for development of 9No. new light industrial/ warehouse use classes E(g)iii, B2 and B8 

units with ancillary office space, associated parking and service yards.  The size range of the proposed 

units have been developed with the estate agents to ensure it meets the local demands and prospective 

tenant's requirements. Each unit has its own designated car parking and service yard area accessed 

interdependently off the shared service road. The buildings have been orientated with all the service 

areas facing inwards so that they have minimal visual and acoustic impact on the local residential 

development and sports grounds to the east of the site. 

 

The forms are simple and well-proportioned for buildings of this type where clear internal heights and 

volumes are required.  The buildings have been designed to combine contemporary materials with crisp, 

modern and simple detailing with the use of various cladding profiles and colours within a considered 

palette. These materials will be used to create a strong, clear and high-quality appearance.  The facades 

visible from outside the site boundaries have been deliberately kept simple so that they provide a visual 

backdrop which respects the existing urban context surrounding the site. 

 

The road layout within the site had been designed to allow for the manoeuvrability and turning of all 

vehicles within their respective service areas. Separate areas for car parking have been provided, and 

these areas also incorporate pedestrian access to the buildings' main entrances. 

 

The site is within Flood Zone 1 

Page 25



A number of ecological enhancements have been proposed for the Site including the inclusion of both 

bat roosting boxes and bird nesting boxes, and a habitat pile in the south east of the Site within a new 

area of wild flower and grass seeding. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

T4NEW Parking provision 

E1NEW Land for employment 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH8 Environmental protection 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

 3 5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The application site is located within an existing mature industrial park within Witney. The site area 

is 11,143 sqm /2.75 Acres. 

 

5.2 The application is to be heard before the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee as the Town 

Council has objected. 

 

5.3 The proposal seeks planning consent for the development of nine new light industrial/ warehouse 

units with ancillary office space, associated parking and service yards with E(g)iii (industrial processes), 

B2 (general industrial) and B8 (storage and distribution) classification of uses. 

 

5.4 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

 

5.5 Both Policy OS2 and Policy E1 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan are considered to be 

relevant when assessing the proposed development.  Policy OS2 Locating development in the right 

places states that a significant proportion of new homes, jobs and supporting services will be focused 

within and on the edge of the main service centres of Witney, Carterton and Chipping Norton. 

 

All development should: 

 Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential cumulative 

impact of development in the locality; 

 Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the character of the 

area; 

 Be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants; 

 Be provided with safe vehicular access and safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting services 

and facilities; 

 Not be at risk of flooding or likely to increase the risk of flooding elsewhere 

 

5.6 Policy E1 which discusses existing employment sites states that proposals to improve the 

effectiveness of employment operations on existing employment sites will be supported where 

Page 26



commensurate with the scale of the town or village and the character of the area. This may include 

redevelopment, replacement buildings or the expansion of existing employment uses. 

 

5.7 Your officers consider that the principle of nine industrial units is acceptable in this location. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.8 The existing site consists of a parking area as well as an existing unit. Other industrial units which 

form the rest of Windrush Industrial Park surround the site to the north and west. The site is bound by 

Windrush Park Road to the north, sports facilities of Witney Tennis Club and West Witney Sports and 

Social Club to the east, open land to the south and Eastwood Road to the west. 

 

5.9 The proposed smaller industrial units 1 to 3 are located towards the north eastern boundary of the 

site with the medium sized units 4 to 7 further west in the middle of the site, with the site layout then 

culminating in the larger units 8 to 9 which are located towards the west boundary. 

 

5.10 The proposed design of the buildings are modern, with grey cladding for the walls and the roof will 

also be of steel cladding.  Your officers consider that the design and the use of materials will improve the 

overall appearance of the industrial park. 

 

Highways 

 

5.11 OCC as Highways Authority has objected to the proposal.  At the time of writing your officers are 

awaiting a further response from OCC given that the applicant has provided further information.  It is 

anticipated that a verbal update will be given at the meeting. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.12 Given the location of the proposed units, your officers do not consider that the proposal will 

adversely affect the residential amenities of existing dwellings. Your Environmental Health officer has not 

raised objections. 

 

Ecology 

 

5.13 With regards to the comments received, your officers consider that conditions can be included as 

part of the recommendation to cover these issues. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.14 Your officers consider that the principle of development is acceptable in this location.  The 

proposed units will be a mix of smaller units and of a more modern design to ensure that the existing 

industrial park is retained for its purpose.  It is stated within the supporting text of Policy E1 that the 

Council will seek the retention of all employment sites where there is an on-going prospect of a suitable 

business use and will support the expansion and redevelopment of sites of an appropriate scale to 

enable businesses to expand, adapt and make the most efficient use of this resource.  Your officers are 

of the opinion that the scale of the proposed redevelopment reflects the character of the area and is 

within a sustainable location. 

 

5.15 However a full verbal update will be given with regards to the highways issue at the meeting. 

 

Page 27



6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

 2  That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

 3  The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance of doubt 

as to what is permitted.  

 

 4  No development shall take place until a site investigation of the nature and extent of contamination 

has been carried out in accordance with a methodology which has previously been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. The results of the site investigation shall be made 

available to the local planning authority before any development begins. If any significant contamination is 

found during the site investigation, a report specifying the measures to be taken to remediate the site to 

render it suitable for the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing 

by the local planning authority before any development begins. 

 

The Remediation Scheme, as agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be fully 

implemented in accordance with the approved timetable of works and before the development 

hereby permitted is first occupied. Any variation to the scheme shall be agreed in writing with the 

Local Planning Authority in advance of works being undertaken. On completion of the works the 

developer shall submit to the Local Planning Authority written confirmation that all works were 

completed in accordance with the agreed details. 

 

If, during the course of development, any contamination is found which has not been identified in 

the site investigation, additional measures for the remediation of this contamination shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of the site 

shall incorporate the approved additional measures. 

 

REASON: To ensure any contamination of the site is identified and appropriately remediated. 

 

 5  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the recommendations within the Ecological 

Impact Assessment prepared by Clarkson & Woods as summarised in the approved Design and Access 

Statement. 

 

REASON: To avoid the doubt of what has been approved. 

 

 6  Before the site first comes into use, details of external lighting shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the local planning authority. The details shall show how and where external lighting will be 

installed (including the type of lighting), so that light spillage into wildlife corridors will be minimised as 

much as possible.  

 

Page 28



All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications and locations set out in the 

approved details, and these shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with these details. Under no 

circumstances should any other external lighting be installed without prior consent from the local 

planning authority. 

                                                                                                       

REASON: To protect foraging/commuting bats in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), Circular 

06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 of the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural 

Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 7  Before the site first comes into use, details of the provision of bat roosting features (e.g. bat 

boxes/tubes/bricks on south or southeast-facing elevations) and nesting opportunities for birds (e.g. 

house sparrow terrace, starling box, swift brick or house martin nest cup on the north or east-facing 

elevations) either mounted onto the external walls of the buildings or onto mature trees on site, as well 

as hedgehog gaps/holes within any new fences/walls, shall be submitted to the local planning authority 

for approval. The details shall include a drawing/s showing the types of features, their locations within 

the site and their positions on the elevations of the buildings, and a timetable for their provision. The 

approved details shall be implemented before the buildings hereby approved is/are first occupied and 

thereafter permanently retained. 

 

REASON: To provide additional roosting for bats and nesting birds as a biodiversity enhancement in 

accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 of 

the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural 

Communities Act 2006. 

 

 8  Prior to the first trench being dug a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be subsequently 

be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.  

The scheme shall include: 

 

 A compliance report to demonstrate how the scheme complies with the "Local 

 Standards and Guidance for Surface Water Drainage on Major Development in Oxfordshire"; 

 Full drainage calculations for all events up to and including the 1 in 100 year plus 

 40% climate change; 

 A Flood Exceedance Conveyance Plan; 

 Comprehensive infiltration testing across the site to BRE DG 365 (where applicable) 

 Detailed design drainage layout drawings of the SuDS proposals including cross-section details; 

 Detailed maintenance management plan in accordance with Section 32 of CIRIA C753 including 

maintenance schedules for each drainage element, and; 

 Details of how water quality will be managed during construction and post development in 

perpetuity; 

 Consent for any connections into third party drainage systems 

 

The approved drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Detailed Design 

prior to the use of the building commencing: Reference: Windrush Park Road, Witney - Plot C, Flood 

Risk Assessment, 21-007_Windrush Park Road, Witney - Plot C, 30th March 2021, Rev – Final 

 

REASON: To ensure that the principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal. 

 

Page 29



 9  Prior to first occupation, a record of the installed SuDS and site wide drainage scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for deposit with the Lead Local 

Flood Authority Asset Register.  

The details shall include: 

 

a) As built plans in both .pdf and .shp file format; 

b) Photographs to document each key stage of the drainage system when installed on 

site; 

c) Photographs to document the completed installation of the drainage structures on 

site; 

d) The name and contact details of any appointed management company information. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Miranda Clark 

Telephone Number: 01993 861660 

Date: 27th October 2021 

Page 30



 
Application Number 21/02896/FUL 

Site Address 
The Newlands Inn 

45 - 47 Newland Street 

Eynsham 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 4LD 

 

Date 27th October 2021 

Officer Miranda Clark 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Eynsham Parish Council 

Grid Reference 443554 E       209577 N 

Committee Date 8th November 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Conversion of public house to a residential dwelling. 

Page 31



 

Applicant Details: 

Mr and Mrs Jermemy and Ann Woodin 

67 Southern By-Pass 

North Hinksey 

Oxford 

Oxfordshire 

England 

OX2 0LA 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council Eynsham Parish Council strongly objects to this application as 

follows:- 

 

It is noted the applicant considers that the business isn't viable, 

however the Parish Council has been reliably informed that it is. Pubs 

and eating places are an important part of the social fabric of 

Eynsham. As the number of residents is expected to increase 

significantly over the forthcoming years, any further reduction in the 

overall provision of such premises should be resisted. 

 

No evidence has been provided that shows there has been a robust 

marketing exercising or information clearly demonstrating there is no 

reasonable likelihood of the business use being viable. The application 

is therefore contrary to West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 (WOLP) 

policy E5 Local Services & Community Services (and wider policies) 

and Eynsham Neighbourhood Plan 2031 policy 11C Retail. 

 

The Newlands Inn is located in the Eynsham Conservation Area and is 

a Grade II listed building. The Council therefore consider that the 

application is contrary to WOLP policy EH11 Listed Buildings. The 

Council is somewhat surprised there is no listed building application 

and comments that the quality of the application is lower than is 

expected or required. 

 

The application is therefore considered contrary to the National 

Planning Policy Framework 2021. Eynsham Parish Council will 

consider registering the property as an Asset of Community Value at 

its forthcoming meeting. 

Mrs Katherine Doughty for Eynsham Parish Council 

21_02896_FUL_TheNewlandsInn.pdf 

 

OCC Highways No objection 

 

WODC Business Development 

 

 

ERS Pollution Consultation 

No comments received at the time of writing (consultation period 

expires 4.11.21) 

 

No objection 

 

Page 32



WODC Env Health - Lowlands No comments received at the time of writing 

 

Conservation Officer  No comments received at the time of writing (consultation period 

expires 4.11.21) 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 At the time of writing over thirty letters of objection have been received.   

The comments include; 

 

The pub when ran by the last landlady was a viable business. 

 

Number of large building developments will serve to increase demand for entertainment facilities within 

Eynsham. 

 

'Running of The Newlands Inn', having been a regular at this establishment for fifteen (15) years the 

statement that it had been 'running at a severe loss' is highly contestable. In my experience the hostelry 

had a goodly amount of custom that could afford a handsome income. Indeed the previous incumbents 

built the business up to be an extremely popular location which I believe had the biggest footfall in 

Eynsham. Thus proving that with the right people, and with the right attitude, The Newlands Inn Public 

House is, and has been, a viable and profitable ongoing business concern. Furthermore, the renting of 

the land opposite The Newlands Inn has for many years been made available, due to the commendable 

community spirit of the owner, for just one pound (£1.00) per year... Thus enhancing the notion of a 

village community. 

 

It is my opinion that the loss of yet another Public House in Eynsham will be detrimental to the 

wellbeing of the Eynsham community, not just now but moving forward into future years. 

During my time in the village (nearly 50 years) it has been run by several tenants who, like the most 

recent ones, have put their own stamp on it and run it very successfully. It's always been at the heart of 

village life, something which culminates every year with the village carnival which attracts hundreds of 

people to the pub.  It has a beautiful bar area which has space for 30 people seated, not 18 as stated (24 

at tables, 6 at the bar), a restaurant space capable of serving 60 covers a night, plus bar meals (I used to 

be a chef there), a small but charming garden at the rear, which is perfectly suitable for dining or 

drinking and seats 20 comfortably. 

 

It should remain open as a public house for all the community and visitors to enjoy, not be converted to 

a residential property to financially benefit one individual. 

 

I understand that Planning Committees do take into account if an establishment was profitable. I 

understand that this was indeed the case and therefore needs to be a major consideration! 

 

The pub has for many years been a popular drinking and meeting place for people from Eynsham and 

beyond. Who on earth would wish to change the use of the premises into a private dwelling when so 

many hostelries have been forced to close due to the COVID-19 pandemic? Once a public house is 

closed it will never again be reinstated. Public houses continue to be the lifeblood of many of the villages 

and towns throughout Britain. 

 

Pubs are social contact points 

Should be kept as a Pub, keep traditions going and create more job opportunities. 

Page 33



This building and facility should be an asset of community value 

Misleading information within the application 

Building work would affect neighbours 

 

I was the landlady at this wonderful pub from 1996 to 2003 and loved every minute of it. It makes a 

fabulous pub would be such a sad thing to close it for good. Anyway the resident ghosts of which there 

are many will make it difficult for people to live in it as a house they never did us harm but they do not 

like change they will soon start playing up! 

 

The Newlands is part of Eynsham history and should not be allowed to be turned into residential 

property purely for profit. 

 

My understanding with the Newlands, is it was not a failing pub prior to closing during the 2020 Covid 

Pandemic. 

 

It’s well known that pubs command a lesser market value on the open market as buildings, than if they 

do with change of use planning consent. 

 

Lose the history 

Much loved public house 

 

Development would also drastically and unsympathetically change the look of the street 

It has always had a loyal core of regulars who have now been disconnected because of the closure, each 

having to use another pub which means people choosing different ones and losing the wonderful 

atmosphere you get when walking into a pub and literally knowing everyone. 

 

One comment in support have been received at the time of writing.   

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A Planning Policy E5 Statement and a Design and Access Statement have been submitted as part of 

the application.  The Planning Statement has been summarised as follows; 

 

There is alternative provision elsewhere in the village - the White Hart, The Queens Head, and The Red 

Lion. The Swan Inn, The Jolly Sportsman, The Talbot Inn and The Evenlode.  There is also a village social 

club, Eynsham Sports and Social club. 

 

In recent times there have been various closures of public houses namely the Railway Inn, The Board 

Hotel and Star Inn which have been converted into residential development. 

 

Alternative provision for restaurants, Ready Steady Spice, and The Bayleaf. Takeaways include The 

Wholesome Earth Cafe, Snax, Rainbow House, Lyall and Co and Smarts Supermakets include Co-op and 

the Spar. 

 

The applicants ran the Newlands Inn for four years from January 2009 to August 2012.  The restaurant 

closed in 2012 due to it running at severe loss and it has not served food since then and has been 

running as a wet pub.  During that time the applicants worked in the bar themselves.  The applicants 

then had to lease it out. 

 

Page 34



Competition from other eight public houses made in difficult to attract new customers for drinking or 

dining.  The seating in the rear garden was not a suitable environment for drinking or dining.  The 

seating on the rented land across the road was not ideal as it meant crossing the road for access and 

was not level. 

 

The applicants decided to lease the Newlands Inn from August 2012 unfortunately the tenant went 

bankrupt in 2013.  Further illustrating how difficult it is to make a success of the Newlands Inn as a 

Public House. 

 

The applicants tried running it again from 2013 to 2015 but only made small levels of profit 

The applicants leased the Inn from 2015. 

 

The coronavirus starting in March 2020 until the present has had a severely additional detrimental effect 

on the viability of the business.  The applicants were forced not to renew the lease and close the Inn.  

The tenants have since taken a lease at the White Hart. 

 

The applicants have been marketing the property for the last two years.  They offered the last tenants 

the opportunity to purchase the Inn but did not receive a satisfactory market price.  Also offered to an 

owner of several public houses but not received a satisfactory offer - being advised that the Inn does not 

have a large enough garden to attract outside trade and no accommodation. 

 

It is the opinion of the applicants that the Inn is not suitable for alternative uses for a community facility. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

E5NEW Local services and community facilities 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

T4NEW Parking provision 

ENP10 Eynsham Neighbourhood Plan 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The application site is located within the village of Eynsham and the Conservation Area.  The 

property itself is Listed and its current use is a public house. 

 

5.2 The proposal seeks planning consent for a change of use from public house to residential dwelling. 

 

5.3 The application is to be heard before the Lowlands Planning Sub-Committee by a request from 

Councillor Levy.   

His planning reasons are; 

a) that change of use is not conducive to the maintenance of the neighbourhood 

b) that the applicant has not demonstrated that the premises cannot be a viable pub (as evidenced 

by the previous tenants taking on a run-down pub 100 metres away and restoring it). 

c) that a change of use would encourage other speculative acquisitions of pubs in villages with 

multiple licence premises with a view to making a capital gain by converting to housing. 

Page 35



d) Policy E5 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan applies. 

 

5.4 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

 

5.5 Your officers consider that Policy E5, Local services and community facilities is the most relevant 

policy of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan.  

The policy states; 

 

The Council will support the development and retention of local services and community facilities to meet local 

needs and to promote social wellbeing, interests, interaction and healthy inclusive communities. 

Development proposals that would result in the loss of community facilities and services will only be supported 

where it can be clearly shown that: 

 appropriate alternative provision of at least equivalent suitability and accessibility, particularly by foot, 

will remain, and; 

 in the case of pubs, shops and other commercially run services and facilities, the existing use is no longer 

viable and is incapable of being made viable or adapted to retain a viable service or facility including as 

a community run enterprise. A robust marketing exercise will be required to demonstrate that the use or 

premises is unviable in accordance with separate guidance published by the Council. 

 

In considering development proposals for the loss of local services and community facilities, the Council will have 

regard to whether a site or facility is registered as an Asset of Community Value. 

 

5.6 In view of the above whilst the principle of the change of use can be considered acceptable by your 

officers, specific supporting information has not been submitted by the applicant at the time of writing. 

 

5.7 Your officers consider that there is appropriate alternative provision by foot within the village.  

However although the applicant has provided a statement that the existing commercial use has been 

marketed there is no supporting evidence to demonstrate this.  In addition there is no other evidence 

to prove that the existing use is no longer viable and cannot be used for alternative community uses. 

Your officers provided information of the marketing guidelines at pre-application stage, which requires 

information such as; 

 

How has the property and/or site been marketed? What actions have been taken to publicise and 

advertise the property? And what price it has been marketed at. 

 

5.8 As such your officers cannot assess whether the existing use is viable.  This is also reflected if your 

Rural Business Officer who states; 

 

Hospitality business, especially pubs, are the fabric of communities and the loss of any pub should never 

be taken lightly.  The onus is on the applicant to provide evidence that the existing use is no longer 

viable, is incapable of being made viable or incapable of being adapted to retain a viable service or facility 

including as a community run enterprise.  The applicants have not done this and neither have they 

provided evidence of a robust marketing exercise.  The application therefore does not comply with 

Local Plan policy E5. 

 

Page 36



Eynsham is a rapidly growing community and it is clear from the other comments received that there is 

a strong desire in the village to retain the Newlands Inn as a pub for the community.  I hope this 

application will be rejected. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.9 Given that there are no physical external or internal changes proposed, Listed Building consent is 

not required in this instance. 

 

5.10 Your officers do not consider that the visual appearance of the Conservation Area will be adversely 

affected. Since the application site is within a Conservation Area, officers are required to take account of 

section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which 

states that, with respect to buildings or other land in a Conservation Area, special attention shall be paid 

to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  Furthermore, 

the paragraphs of Section 16 'Conserving and enhancing the historic environment ' of the NPPF are 

relevant to consideration of the application. Proposals are supported in Conservation Areas where they 

can be shown to preserve or enhance the special interest, character, appearance or setting of the area. 

In particular, the location, form and scale of development should be sympathetic to its surrounding 

context, not be detrimental to views within, into, or out of the area and should not harm the original 

curtilage or pattern of development within the area. 

 

Highways 

 

5.11 OCC Highways have not objected to the proposal in terms of highway safety issues or parking 

provision. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.12 Your officers consider that the proposal will not adversely affect residential amenities as no physical 

alterations will be made to the existing building. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.13 Your officers consider that it has not been demonstrated satisfactorily that the existing public 

house is not viable, or that the commercial premises could be used for alternative uses.  Although it has 

not been formally identified as a Community Asset, the Parish Council has put forward an interest as 

part of their formal consultation response. 

 

In view of the above your officers consider that the proposal fails to meet the requirements of Policy E5 

of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan. 

 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1  It has not been sufficiently demonstrated to the Local Planning Authority that the existing use is no 

longer viable and is incapable of being made viable or adapted to retain a viable service or facility 

including as a community run enterprise. A robust marketing exercise has not been submitted.  As such 

the proposal is contrary to Policy E5 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan, Policy ENP10 of the 

Eynsham Neighbourhood Plan and the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF. 

 

Page 37



 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Miranda Clark 

Telephone Number: 01993 861660 

Date: 27th October 2021 

Page 38



 
Application Number 21/02929/FUL 

Site Address 
Land at Windrush Park 

Windrush Park Road 

Windrush Industrial Park 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

Date 27th October 2021 

Officer Miranda Clark 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Witney Parish Council 

Grid Reference 433220 E       210397 N 

Committee Date 8th November 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Erection of 2 industrial units (Use Class E(g)iii, B2 and B8), to include external ancillary service areas, car 

and cycle parking. 

 

Page 39



Applicant Details: 

Mr Nicholas Howe 

C/O Canmoor 

34 Dover Street 

London 

W1S 4NG 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council Witney Town Council object to this application. 

The plans do not go far enough to show where the cycle paths link to 

existing networks, or show how and where the paths cross the site. 

In line with Policy T1, All new development should be designed to 

maximise opportunities for walking, cycling and the use of public 

transport. The current scheme is unambitious, in that more can be 

done to provide opportunities for walking and cycling. Further, Policy 

T3 states that Development that fails to make adequate provision of 

measures to encourage the use of non-car modes of transport will 

not be favourably considered. 

 

Witney Town Council echo the views of the Local Lead Flood 

Authority and request that SuDS features be incorporated whenever 

possible, such as porous paving in the car park. Similarly, members 

agree with the submission from Thames Valley Police and prior to 

this application being approved, request further details of the 

boundary treatments and lighting at the site. 

 

Whilst Witney Town Council object to the current proposal, 

development of the site is supported and members welcome revised 

plans with consideration of the points raised above. This is also an 

opportunity for the applicant to incorporate sustainable features such 

as Solar PV and vehicle charging points, in line with Core Objectives 

CO15, CO17 and CO18 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

WODC Env Health - Lowlands No Comment Received. 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Local Lead Flood Authority 

Objection 

The total of drained area according to the calculations and drawing is 

10081m² (1.08ha). However, the report states the overall 

impermeable area of proposed site to be 1.12ha. Please clarify. 

Calculations must include the following storm events, 1 in 1, 1 in 30, 1 

in 100 and 1 in 100 + 40%CC. 

 

We understand porous pavement may not suit all locations. 

However, according to your proposal, there are multiple areas of car 

parking spaces. The proposal could include this SuDS element in 

certain areas, providing on the surface water quality measure. 

The drawing provided needs to be detailed enough to cross reference 

it with the calculations provided. For example, the pipes shown in the 

Page 40



 

 

 

 

OCC Transport 

 

drawing must have labels and annotations so that it can be cross 

referenced with the network provided in the calculations. 

Exceedance flow routes must be indicated clearly on a drawing. 

 

No objections subject to condition 

 

Biodiversity Officer Condition recommended 

 

Thames Water No objection 

 

WODC Planning Policy 

Manager 

No Comment Received. 

 

 

TV Police-Crime Prevention 

Design Advisor 

No objection - comments regarding boundary treatments, external 

lighting. building security 

 

WODC Business Development No Comment Received. 

 

WODC - Arts No Comment Received. 

 

ERS Env. Consultation Sites The following report has been submitted:  

 

Ramboll, Environmental Summary Report for Windrush Industrial 

Park, Witney. Dated 16/04/2021.  

 

The report provides a helpful summary of the investigation, remedial 

and validation works that have been completed on site. I have a 

number of questions for clarification but the detail for these maybe 

provided in the original reports. Please could the following reports 

(referenced in the summary report) be submitted:  

 

1) Phase 1 Environmental Assessment and Groundwater sampling 

report. March 2019.  

2) Additional Site Investigation at Windrush Industrial Park. May 2019.  

3) Detailed Quantative Risk Assessment May 2019.  

4) Remedial Options Appraisal and Strategy. September 2019.  

5) Remediation Validation Report October 2020.  

 

In the meantime could the following initial comments be passed to 

the applicant:  

 

 Has there been any interaction with the Environment Agency 

over the course of the remediation?  

 The number of ground gas monitoring visits does not appear 

sufficient to characterise conditions beneath the site.  

 The report recommends that the boreholes and monitoring 

wells on site are decommissioned. This should not be 

completed until it has been established that the site has been 

sufficiently characterised.  

 

Page 41



Once we have received and reviewed the original reports we will be 

able to provide our full list of comments.  

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No comments have been received. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A Design and Access Statement has been submitted and has been summarised as; 

 

The proposal is for the development of 2No. new light industrial/warehouse units with ancillary office 

space, associated parking and service yards with E(g)iii (industrial processes), B2 (general industrial) and 

B8 (storage and distribution) classification of uses.  Access to the site is currently provided from four 

different points. Two from Windrush Park Road along the southern site boundary which connects to 

Burford Road (B4047), one from Northwood Road and one from Range Road.  Plot A is located in the 

north west corner of the Windrush Industrial Park and consists of two existing units. Other industrial 

units which form the rest of Windrush Industrial Park surround the site to the south and east. The site 

is bound by Windrush Park Road to the south, Northwood Road to the north and existing industrial 

units to the east and west. 

 

The site is partially occupied by two existing industrial buildings, A1 and A2, which have B2/B8 use class. 

The facades visible from outside the site boundaries have been deliberately kept simple so that they 

provide a visual backdrop which respects the existing urban context surrounding the site. 

A number of ecological enhancements have been proposed for the Site including the inclusion of both 

bat roosting boxes and bird nesting boxes, and the planting of a native, species-rich hedgerow along the 

western Site boundary. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

E1NEW Land for employment 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH8 Environmental protection 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The application site is located within a mature industrial park in Witney. The proposal is seeking 

planning consent for the erection of two industrial units. 

 

5.2 The application is to be heard before the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee as the Town 

Council has objected to the proposal. 

 

Page 42



5.3 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

 

5.4 Your officers consider that in line with both Policies OS2 and E1 of the adopted West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan that the principle of such development is acceptable.  Policy OS2 discusses the location to 

which new industrial units should be built along with general development principles. This Policy states 

that a significant proportion of new homes, jobs and supporting services will be focused within and on 

the edge of the main service centres of Witney, Carterton and Chipping Norton. 

All development should: 

 

 Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential cumulative 

impact of development in the locality; 

 Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the character of the 

area; 

 Be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants; 

 Be provided with safe vehicular access and safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting services 

and facilities; 

 Not be at risk of flooding or likely to increase the risk of flooding elsewhere 

 

5.5 Policy E1 discusses land for employment and states that proposals to improve the effectiveness of 

employment operations on existing employment sites will be supported where commensurate with the 

scale of the town or village and the character of the area. This may include redevelopment, replacement 

buildings or the expansion of existing employment uses. 

 

5.6 In view of the above your officers consider that the principle of two industrial units is acceptable in 

this location. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.7 Plot A is located in the north west corner of the Windrush Industrial Park and consists of two 

existing units.  

 

5.8 The proposal is for two adjoined units measuring approximately 96m wide, 52m deep and 11m tall. 

The proposed design of the buildings are modern, with grey cladding for the walls and the roof will also 

be of steel cladding.  Your officers consider that the design and the use of materials will improve the 

overall appearance of the industrial park. 

 

Highways and drainage 

 

5.9 OCC as Highways Authority has not objected to the proposal, subject to a condition being imposed. 

However at the time of writing your officers are awaiting further information, given that OCC as the 

local flood authority has objected to the proposal.  It is anticipated that a verbal update will be given at 

the meeting. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

Page 43



5.10 Given the location of the proposed units, your officers do not consider that the proposal will 

adversely affect the residential amenities of existing dwellings.  Your Environmental Health officer has 

not raised objections. 

 

Ecology 

 

5.11 With regards to the comments received from the biodiversity officer, your officers have included 

their conditions within the recommendation.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.12 Your officers consider that the principle of development is acceptable in this location.  The 

proposed units will allow further employment within this main service centre. It is stated within the 

supporting text of Policy E1 that the Council will seek the retention of all employment sites where there 

is an on-going prospect of a suitable business use and will support the expansion and redevelopment of 

sites of an appropriate scale to enable businesses to expand, adapt and make the most efficient use of 

this resource.  Your officers are of the opinion that the scale of the proposed redevelopment reflects 

the character of the area and is within a sustainable location.  The proposed units will improve the 

overall appearance of the site. 

 

5.13 However a full verbal update will be given with regards to the drainage issue at the meeting. 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

 2  That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

 3  Before above ground building work commences, a schedule of materials (including samples) to be 

used in the elevations of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in the approved materials. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

 4  The development shall be completed in accordance with the recommendations in Section 3 of 

the Ecological Impact Assessment, dated 12th August 2021 prepared by Clarkson & Woods 

Ecological Consultancy, as submitted with the planning application. All the recommendations 

shall be implemented in full according to the specified timescales, unless otherwise agreed in 

writing by the local planning authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure that bats and birds are protected in accordance with The Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as 

amended, Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework (Chapter 15), Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for 

Page 44



the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 5  Before the erection of any external walls, details of the provision of integrated bat roosting 

features (e.g. bat boxes/tubes/bricks on south or southeast-facing elevations) and integrated 

nesting opportunities for birds (e.g. house sparrow terrace, starling box, swift brick or house 

martin nest cup on the north or east-facing elevations) within the walls of the new buildings, as 

well as hedgehog holes/gaps within any new fences/walls, shall be submitted to the local 

planning authority for approval. The details shall include a drawing/s showing the types of 

features, their locations within the site and their positions on the elevations of the buildings, and 

a timetable for their provision. The approved details shall be implemented before the dwelling/s 

hereby approved is/are first occupied and thereafter permanently retained. 

 

REASON: To provide additional roosting for bats and nesting birds as a biodiversity 

enhancement in accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and Section 40 of the Natural 

Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 6  Before the erection of any external walls, details of external lighting shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. The details shall show how and where 

external lighting will be installed (including the type of lighting), so that light spillage into wildlife 

corridors will be minimised as much as possible.  All external lighting shall be installed in accordance 

with the specifications and locations set out in the approved details, and these shall be maintained 

thereafter in accordance with these details. Under no circumstances should any other external lighting 

be installed without prior consent from the local planning authority. 

 

REASON: To protect foraging/commuting bats in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats 

and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), 

Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 

of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the 

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 7  Before the occupation of the development hereby approved, a comprehensive landscape scheme 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The landscaping scheme 

shall include, but not be limited to, the following biodiversity enhancements: 

 

 The creation of native species-rich hedgerows; 

 Native tree planting; 

 Wildflower grassland areas; 

 Ornamental shrubs; and 

 a 5-year maintenance plan 

 

The scheme must show details of all planting areas, tree and plant species, numbers and planting sizes. 

The proposed means of enclosure and screening should also be included, together with details of any 

mounding, walls and fences and hard surface materials to be used throughout the proposed 

development. 

 

The entire landscaping scheme shall be completed by the end of the planting season immediately 

following the completion of the development or the site being brought into use, whichever is the 

sooner. 

 

Page 45



REASON: To enhance the site for biodiversity in accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of 

the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011- 

2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Section 40 of the Natural Environment and 

Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 8  If within a period of five years from the date of planting of any tree/hedge/shrub that 

tree/hedge /shrub, or any replacement, is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes 

seriously damaged or defective, another tree/hedge /shrub of the same species and size as that 

originally planted shall be planted in the same location as soon as reasonably possible and no 

later than the first available planting season, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 

planning authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure effective delivery of approved landscaping and to secure enhancements for 

biodiversity in accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to 

comply with Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 9  A 10-year Landscape and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to, and approved in 

writing by, the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the development.  The content of the 

LEMP shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following information: 

 

i. Description and evaluation of features to be managed; including location(s) shown on a site map; 

ii. Landscape and ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management; 

iii. Aims and objectives of management; 

iv. Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives; 

v. Prescriptions for management actions; 

vi. A work schedule matrix (i.e. an annual work plan) capable of being rolled forward over a 5 or 

10 year period); 

vii. Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan; 

viii. Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures; 

ix. Timeframe for reviewing the plan; and 

x. Details of how the aims and objectives of the LEMP will be communicated to the occupiers of 

the development. 

 

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the long term  

implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the management body (ies) 

responsible for its delivery.  The plan shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show that 

the conservation aims and objectives of the LEMP are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial 

action will be identified, agreed and implemented. 

 

The LEMP shall be implemented in full in accordance with the approved details. 

 

REASON: To maintain and enhance biodiversity, and to ensure long-term management in perpetuity, in 

accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the NPPF, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local 

Plan 2031 and in order for the council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural 

Communities Act 2006. 

 

10  Notwithstanding the submitted details the development shall provide for a route suitable for use by 

pedestrians and cycles between Unit 13 (as shown on drawing PL-2110) and Windrush Park Road.  The 

development shall retain this route hereafter. 

Page 46



 

REASON: To maximise the opportunities for walking, cycling and the use of public transport in 

accordance with Policy T1 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

11  Details and location of the parking spaces equipped with active Electric Vehicle Charging Points must 

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council prior to first occupation of the accommodation 

hereby permitted. 

 

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and retained in perpetuity, 

unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Council.  

 

REASON: In the interest of sustainability and climate change. 

 

NB Policy EVI8 of the Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy requires a minimum of 25% of 

parking spaces at non residential development to be provided with electric charging points. 

 

INFORMATIVES :- 

 

 0. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to species 

protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant 

legislation such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

All British bat species are protected under The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 

2017 (as amended), which implements the EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United Kingdom, and 

the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). This protection extends to individuals of the 

species and their roost features, whether occupied or not. A derogation licence from Natural 

England would be required before any works affecting bats or their roosts are carried out. 

 

All British birds (while nesting, building nests, sitting on eggs and feeding chicks), their nests and 

eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. Works that 

will impact upon active birds' nests should be undertaken outside the breeding season to ensure 

their protection, i.e. works should only be undertaken between August and February, or only 

after the chicks have fledged from the nest. 

 

In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected species, or if evidence of 

protected species is found during works, then you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified 

and experienced ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 

commencing works (with regard to bats). 

 

Notes to applicant 

 

 1 Please note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to species 

protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant 

legislation such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

All British bat species are protected under The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 

2017 (as amended), which implements the EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United Kingdom, and 

the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). This protection extends to individuals of the 

Page 47



species and their roost features, whether occupied or not. A derogation licence from Natural 

England would be required before any works affecting bats or their roosts are carried out. 

 

All British birds (while nesting, building nests, sitting on eggs and feeding chicks), their nests and 

eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. Works that 

will impact upon active birds' nests should be undertaken outside the breeding season to ensure 

their protection, i.e. works should only be undertaken between August and February, or only 

after the chicks have fledged from the nest. 

 

In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected species, or if evidence of 

protected species is found during works, then you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified 

and experienced ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 

commencing works (with regard to bats). 

 

 

Contact Officer: Miranda Clark 

Telephone Number: 01993 861660 

Date: 27th October 2021 

Page 48



 
 
 
 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 9th June 2021 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  20/02937/S73 Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Variation of condition 3 (materials) and removal of condition 4 (window, door and cladding 

details) of planning permission 20/01003/FUL and Listed Building consent 20/01004/LBC. 

Plough Inn Black Bourton Road Clanfield 

Ms Georgina Pearman 

 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 5



DELGAT 
 

2.  21/01543/FUL Ducklington APP 

  

Erection of extensions to enlarge existing lairage buildings and provision of additional car 

parking and cycle shelters. (Retrospective). 

Mutchmeats Ltd Abattoir New Close Lane Ducklington 

Mr Nigel Morgan 

 

 

3.  21/01140/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

First floor extension to rear elevation. 

4 Rocky Banks Brize Norton Carterton 

Mr John Wootton 

 

 

4.  21/01602/CLE Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (to allow the continued use of Gaunt Mill Cottage as two residential 

flats) 

Gaunt Mill Cottage Standlake Oxfordshire 

Mr and Mrs Glynn 

 

 

5.  21/02070/CND Bampton and Clanfield APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 8 (Rapid EV charging points) of planning permission 20/01398/S73 

Lavender Place Queen Street Bampton 

Mr Ben Whiting 

 

 

6.  21/02087/HHD Eynsham and Cassington WDN 

  

Erection of a single storey front extension. 

40 Marlborough Place Eynsham Witney 

Ms Laura Collins 

 

 

7.  21/02118/FUL Ducklington APP 

  

Erection of a two storey replacement dwelling with parking and associated landscaping. 

Far Horizons Lew Bampton 

Mr Francis Gooddy 

 

 

8.  21/02177/HHD Ducklington APP 

  

Conversion of loft space to include the insertion of dormer windows and rooflights 

(Amended) 

1 Nursery Cottage Malthouse Nurseries Main Road 

Mr And Mrs Absolon 

 

 

Page 52



DELGAT 
 

9.  21/02175/FUL Ducklington APP 

  

Erection of four dwellings, with garaging and parking along with upgrading of the access onto 

the Lew Road and associated works 

Land West Of Glebe Cottage Lew Road Curbridge 

Mr W Povey, Mr And Mrs C And J Mitchel And Abbeymill Homes 

 

 

10.  21/02284/S73 Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of conditions 2 and 4 of permission 18/01509/FUL to allow a change of materials of 

the lean-to shelter roof, from lapped oak boards to slate 

Society Of Antiquaries Kelmscott Manor Kelmscott 

Mr John Lewis 

 

 

11.  21/02325/S73 Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 4 of Listed Building Consent 18/01510/LBC to allow a change of 

materials of the lean-to shelter roof, from lapped oak boards to slate 

Society Of Antiquaries Kelmscott Manor Kelmscott 

Mr John Lewis 

 

 

12.  21/02290/LBC Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Proposed replacement windows and glazed doors 

Dovecote House Little Faringdon Lechlade 

Mr Andy Sumner 

 

 

13.  21/02433/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a natural stone boundary wall 

Shillbrook Cottage Shilton Burford 

Mrs Angela Shamoon 

 

 

14.  21/02450/HHD Carterton South APP 

  

Single storey pitched-roof rear extension and detached garage. (Amended) 

57 Ashfield Road Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mr & Mrs Paul Gaskell 

 

 

Page 53



DELGAT 
 

15.  21/02470/HHD Witney East APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a first floor rear extension together with alterations to the existing kitchen roof 

4 Church Lane Witney Oxfordshire 

Jaimie Lyel 

 

 

16.  21/02514/HHD Carterton North West APP 

  

Renovation of existing property and erection of two storey side extension with dormer 

windows to front and rear (Amended) 

43 Burford Road Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mrs Dianne Evans 

 

 

17.  21/02545/S73 Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 19/01838/HHD to allow the single storey rear 

extension to be reduced in size. 

31 New Road Hailey Witney 

Mr Stuart Massey 

 

 

18.  21/02530/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 7 (schedule of materials), 8 (details of all external window and doors), 

10 (scheme for landscaping of the site), 14 (assessment of the nature and extent of 

contamination) and 15 (detailed remediation scheme) of planning permission 15/03165/FUL 

Northmoor Park Church Road Northmoor 

Mr Charles Bull 

 

 

19.  21/02544/FUL Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Construction of replacement dwelling together with associated works and landscaping. 

Ambury Close Farm Barnard Gate Witney 

Mr James Lyall 

 

 

20.  21/02580/FUL Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

WDN 

  

Construction of detached dwelling with associated works and formation of additional access. 

5 Upper Crescent Minster Lovell Witney 

Mr Cross 

 

 

Page 54



DELGAT 
 

21.  21/02581/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Erection of tree house and platform (retrospective) 

High Cogges Farm High Cogges Witney 

Ben Morrish 

 

 

22.  21/02590/HHD Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Single storey rear extension and car port to side of property (Amended) 

11 The Downs Standlake Witney 

Mr & Mrs Currie 

 

 

23.  21/02608/HHD Alvescot and Filkins WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of an outdoor swimming pool 

Ramblers Cottage The Walk Main Road 

Mr Seth Dixon 

 

 

24.  21/02609/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Garage extension, porch extension, loft conversion with dormer windows and rear single 

storey extension (Amended) 

Cleve House Kelmscott Lechlade 

Mr David Griffin 

 

 

25.  21/02636/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 7 (comprehensive landscape scheme) of planning permission 

20/01893/FUL 

Cokethorpe School Cokethorpe Park Ducklington 

Mrs Harriet Stapleton 

 

 

26.  21/02638/CND Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 3 (schedule of materials), 4 (details of external windows and doors), 9 

(details of nesting opportunities for birds) of planning permissions 20/03340/HHD and 

20/03341/LBC 

Broadwell House Broadwell Lechlade 

Peter Jackson 

 

 

Page 55



DELGAT 
 

27.  21/02637/HHD Bampton and Clanfield APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a deatched garage and carport with office space over 

Hayway Farmhouse Hayway Lane Weald 

Mr Collins 

 

 

28.  21/02641/HHD Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Erection of single storey and first floor rear extensions 

3 High House Close Clanfield Bampton 

Mr and Mrs Barker 

 

 

29.  21/02650/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Erection of single storey side and rear extension. 

69 Station Road Brize Norton Carterton 

Ms Jacqui Macfarlane 

 

 

30.  21/02651/HHD Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Erection of  two storey and single storey extensions. Alterations to include the construction 

of an oak framed porch to side elevation. 

Westfield Farm Calais Lane Yelford 

Mr And Mrs Beavis 

 

 

31.  21/02663/CLE Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness for a snooker, pool, darts and social club with ancillary use for 

celebratory events and the construction of a smoking shelter 

Unit 2-4 Eagle Industrial Estate Witney 

C/O Agent 

 

 

32.  21/02669/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed rear single storey and two storey side extension to form an annexe 

West Mead Church Lane Shilton 

Mrs L Walker 

 

 

Page 56



DELGAT 
 

33.  21/02677/FUL Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Construction of a first floor link bridge to carry mechanical conveyor belt delivery system 

between Unit 2 and Lakeside buildings. 

The Triangle Stanton Harcourt Industrial Estate Stanton Harcourt 

CEVA Logistics 

 

 

34.  21/02683/FUL Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Alterations to increase roof height of existing building to create a mezzanine floor beneath 

Seldram Supplies Ltd Southfield Road Eynsham 

Mr Stephen Denny 

 

 

35.  21/02724/CND Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 3 (schedule of materials) of planning permission 20/00146/HHD 

22 Church Green Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr Patrick Stout 

 

 

36.  21/02748/HHD Witney Central APP 

  

Conservatory conversion to provide garden room 

44 Ashcombe Crescent Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr Peter Collett 

 

 

37.  21/02723/HHD North Leigh APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension, alteration to existing front and rear dormer windows 

and the conversion of the integral garage to create additional living space 

25 Windmill Road North Leigh Witney 

Mr H Dodd 

 

 

38.  21/02731/LBC Eynsham and Cassington APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement of the existing Cotswold stone roof covering to match the existing, with leaded 

hips. 

The Bartholomew Building The Square Eynsham 

Eynsham Parish Council 

 

 

Page 57



DELGAT 
 

39.  21/02735/FUL Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Erection of a single storey rear extension to clubhouse (Amended Plans) 

Witney Rugby Football Club Witney Road Hailey 

Mr Andrew Tacon 

 

 

40.  21/02737/CLP Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (convert existing workshop and store to create additional living 

space). 

Paddock Gate Bampton Road Clanfield 

Ms Patricia Rushton 

 

 

41.  21/02740/CND Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 3 (schedule of materials) of planning permission 20/00147/LBC 

22 Church Green Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr Patrick Stout 

 

 

42.  21/02743/FUL Ducklington APP 

  

Installation of a horse arena (menage). 

Land East Of Baptist Church Witney Road Ducklington 

Mr Benjamin Philcox 

 

 

43.  21/02750/HHD Witney East APP 

  

Proposed single storey rear extension; front elevation porch addition; ramped access to front 

door; replacement garage roof and doors 

87 Pensclose Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr & Mrs Ellis 

 

 

44.  21/02752/ADV Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of two fascia signs and one projecting sign, all internally illuminated. 

Unit 3-4 Woolgate Shopping Centre Witney 

Ms Paula Bill 

 

 

45.  21/02777/CLP Carterton North West APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (erection of single storey rear extension). 

Whiteoaks 22 Shilton Road Carterton 

Mr Cartwright 

 

 

Page 58



DELGAT 
 

46.  21/02785/OUT Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

WDN 

  

Outline application for two dwellings together with associated vehicular access. 

Providence Cottage Mount Skippett Ramsden 

Mr R Howfield 

 

 

47.  21/02781/FUL Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Erection of an agricultural building. 

Twelve Acre Farm Chilbridge Road Eynsham 

Mrs Emma Blake 

 

 

48.  21/02782/LBC Bampton and Clanfield APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed Replacement Doors and Windows. Provide lead cladding to existing dormers. 

Elephant & Castle Bridge Street Bampton 

Anne Baldwin 

 

 

49.  21/02786/HHD Carterton North East APP 

  

Retrospective application for conservatory to rear of dwelling 

1 Saffron Crescent Carterton Oxfordshire 

SAMSON AND LAURENCA FERNANDEZ AND RODRIGUES 

 

 

50.  21/02792/CND Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Discharge of condition 5 (schedule of works, description of mitigation measures and, section 

drawings) of planning permission 21/00596/LBC 

The Granary 2 Shillbrook Manor Bampton Road 

Mr and Mrs Paul and Karen Sherrat 

 

 

51.  21/02793/HHD North Leigh APP 

  

Proposed render the house 

Fermain East End North Leigh 

Mr Adrian Edwards 

 

 

52.  21/02796/HHD Carterton North West APP 

  

Proposed Removal of Conservatory Replaced with a Single Storey Extension 

5 Garner Close Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mr N Appleton 

 

 

Page 59



DELGAT 
 

53.  21/02808/HHD Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a carport with associated access works 

Cherry Tree House Church Road Northmoor 

Mr Bull 

 

 

54.  21/02815/FUL Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Change of use of agricultural building to a builders yard (class use sui generis). 

Friars Court Farm Main Street Clanfield 

Mr Charles Willmer 

 

 

55.  21/02820/HHD Witney North APP 

  

Single story side extension and re-roofing of garage. 

35 Farmers Close Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr & Mrs Newton 

 

 

56.  21/02842/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a rear conservatory, under existing balcony 

The George Barn Middletown Hailey 

Mr Michael Weller 

 

 

57.  21/02849/PN42 Eynsham and Cassington P4REF 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension (4.18m x 3.55, height to eaves/3.8 max height). 

79 Wytham View Eynsham Witney 

Mr And Mrs Cox 

 

 

58.  21/02843/LBC Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Proposed internal doorway in between utility and garage store 

Lower Farm Lower End Ramsden 

Mr Daniel Domberger 

 

 

59.  21/02845/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Proposed Conservatory 

16 Woodside Drive Bradwell Village Burford 

Mr & Mrs H Ward 

 

 

Page 60



DELGAT 
 

60.  21/02846/CLP Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (construction of box dormer to rear roof slope and insertion of 3 

no rooflights in existing front roof slope). 

45 New Road Bampton Oxfordshire 

Mr J Pimblett 

 

 

61.  21/02852/PN56 Ducklington P2NRQ 

  

Conversion of agricultural building to dwelling houses. 

Curbridge Downs Farm Burford Road Minster Lovell 

Mr M Walker 

 

 

62.  21/02868/FUL Witney West APP 

  

Erection of external cantilever storage racks and associated lighting units 

4 Tungsten Park Colletts Way Witney 

_ 

 

 

63.  21/02873/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed single and double storey rear extension 

25 Queen Street Eynsham Witney 

Mr M James 

 

 

64.  21/02876/HHD Carterton North East APP 

  

Single storey rear extension 

14 Willow Drive Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mr & Mrs Ross 

 

 

65.  21/02894/HHD Witney North APP 

  

Erection of porch to front and first floor side extension 

81 Farmers Close Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr James Edson 

 

 

66.  21/02917/ADV Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

New non-illuminated fascia and projecting signs. 

27 Market Square Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr Andy Watson 

 

 

Page 61



DELGAT 
 

67.  21/02928/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Single storey rear and side extension to form annex 

99 Wenrisc Drive Minster Lovell Witney 

Mrs Sara Bana 

 

 

68.  21/02930/HHD Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Single storey extension to rear elevation 

29 Shergold Road Bampton Oxfordshire 

MR MRS HEATHER COOP 

 

 

69.  21/02939/CND Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 3 (schedule of materials), 4 (details of all windows) and 9 (scheme to 

protect from ambient noise) of planning permission 21/00730/FUL 

Five Elms Farm Old Witney Road Eynsham 

Mrs Ann Cubby 

 

 

70.  21/02954/HHD Ducklington APP 

  

Removal of existing dilapidated attached store and erection of single storey extension to form 

utility/shower room 

Lew House Cottage Lew Bampton 

Mrs Fiona Hook 

 

 

71.  21/02955/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Proposed first floor extension on front elevation, over existing ground floor single storey, and 

single storey extension to attached garage. Single storey rear extension, with small first floor 

extension to one of the existing rear first floor bedrooms. 

110 Dovehouse Close Eynsham Witney 

Mr Thomas Roberts 

 

 

72.  21/02970/HHD Witney West APP 

  

Conversion of integral garage to living accommodation 

49 Valence Crescent Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr Leigh Harris 

 

 

73.  21/03003/HHD Ducklington APP 

  

Two storey side extension and front entrance porch 

35 Witney Road Ducklington Witney 

Mr C Strainge 

 

 

Page 62



DELGAT 
 

74.  21/03046/HHD Witney Central APP 

  

Erection of two storey side and single storey rear extension 

38 Davenport Road Witney Oxfordshire 

Mrs Julie McCarthy 

 

 

75.  21/03043/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 6 (stages programme of archaeological evaluation and mitigation) of 

planning permission 20/03409/FUL 

Chimney Meadows Nature Reserve Chimney Bampton 

Lisa Lane 

 

 

76.  21/03045/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Erection of two storey rear extension. Alterations to existing roof height with the conversion 

of attic along with construction of a rear dormer. 

4 Bell Close Cassington Witney 

Ms Katherine Thomas 

 

 

77.  21/03118/PDET28 Ducklington P2NRQ 

  

Erection of an agricultural machinery storage barn 

Lower Farm Lew Bampton 

Mr Stephen Palmer 

 

 

78.  21/03201/CND Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 6 (details of all external windows and doors) of planning permission 

19/01267/FUL 

Park Farm Lower End Alvescot 

Mr Joe Harter 

 

 

79.  21/03216/CND Witney Central APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 6 of planning permission 20/01152/FUL (Archaeological watching 

brief). 

Charlbury House 66 High Street Witney 

Mr Somaiya 

 

 

Page 63



DELGAT 
 

80.  21/03345/NMA Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Reserved Matters application for the construction of 160 dwellings and provision of public 

open space with associated infrastructure and earthworks, pursuant to outline planning 

permission 16/03415/OUT (non-material amendment to allow the use of different stone on 

plots 130-131, 107-110, 93 - 95, 99-106 and 25-36). 

Land East Of Mount Owen Road Bampton 

Mrs Lorna Juarez 

 

 

 

Page 64


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Applications for Development
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers

